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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Te the Members of DS Toll Road Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PS Toll Road Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepled in india, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2023, its profit including Other Comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA") specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereander, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial

statementis.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's report and shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report theresh:

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information apg ave do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we required to
report that fact. The other information is likely to be provided to us after the date of our report.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the Financial Position, Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the ind AS
and other accounting pr 1nc1ples genu ally accepted in Indla

This responsibitity also mciudes mamtcnancc of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of ‘the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; qc!cctlon and __appllcauon of the appropriate
accounting pohues making judgements and estimates that ‘are. reasonable and prudent; and
design, 1mp]ementatmn and maintenance of adequale mtemal financial controls, that were
operating effectwe]y for ensuring the accuracy: and comp¥eteness of the accounting records,
relevant to the prepa; ation and fair pr esentatlon of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and alefr ee from material mlssta{ement whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the f"nalma! statenients, management is responsibie for. assessmg the Company’s
ability to contmue as agoing concern, d:sclosmg, as applicable, matters lelated to going concern
and using the going concer N basis ofaccountmg unless management exther intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations or, has no realistic alternative but to do so

Those Board of Directors are also :eSponsﬂJle for overseeing the Lompany s ﬂnanaal reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
fs pot a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users talken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

«  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemepti wWherfer
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to tBoSE-TISKS, 280




& ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3}{i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of managentent’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw-attention in :'o'ur'.'-?auditor's_.j'é_p'q_rt to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are: inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

However, ___fl_i_f_ai_i*e events or conditions may rause the 'Cﬁ;h;)any to cease to continue as a

going concern.

«  Evaluate ‘the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Ind AS Financial Statements may.be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in: . s R

i.  planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

i to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal contro} that we identify during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of e Actu@give
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in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asreqguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books:

c} The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity deait with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards

specified under section 133 of the Act;

e) On the ba_s__is_::'c_é'f_ ‘written representations re_cé__iy_ed_':_f;f_é_l_rl the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March.31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the

f) With fé_:_s_p_'ect to the adequacy of the in_t_{;é_r__ﬁ'al financial con_t___r:q'ls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to :these financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer fo our separate Repor nnexure B”,

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that no
remuneration has been paid by the company to its directors during the year. Hence the
requirement of the company for compliance under this section is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rules 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us

and as represented by the management:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at March 31,
2023 on its financial position in its Financial Statement. - Refer Note No. 32 of

the accompanying financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

i
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iv. (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 37 to the financial statement no funds have
heen advanced or loaned or invested (either from bhorrowed funds or share
premjum or any other sources or kind of funds} by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly fend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

{b} Management has represented to us that, to the hest of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 37 to the financial statement no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“ Fundmg Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded
in wr]tmg or. othel wise, that the Company, shali, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or.invest in “other persons . or "1__tmes identified in any manner
whatsoevel by or on behalf of the l*undmg'Palty ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
promde any guarantee, secunty or the - 11]{(, on behalf of the Ultimate

_ Beneﬁ(:lal ies

_}'.f'(c) Based on our audit pr ocedure conducted that are considered reasonable
"-.:-.and appropriate in the cir cumqtances nothing has come to our attention that
1_':.cau';e us to believe that the representation glven ;.;.the management under
'paragx aph (2) (h) (iv) (&}, '{b] contain any material misstalement

V. The'Company lxas not declal'ed or paid any dividend durmg_the year.

For MKPS & Assomales
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

Narendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN: 23065025BGRDL0O4301

Place :Mumbai
Date :April 26,2023
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"ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF DS TOLL ROAD LIMITED.

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of

audit, we state that:

i) {a)  (A) The company does not carry an property, plant and equipment in its financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under this sub-clause is not

applicable.
(B} The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its

intangible assets.

(b) In view of there being no property, plant and equipment, the reporting
requirenients under this sub-clausc is not applicabie.

() There are no.immovable properties disclosed in the accompanying financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (¢) of clause
(i) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

(d) As explained to us, the company has ‘Dot revalued any of its intangible assets
during the year. RIS

(e} According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of
our:examination of the records of the company, we Teport that no proceedings
have ‘been initiated during the :year or are pending gainst the company as at
March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under.the Benami Transactions

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 0f 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii)  (a) Inour opini_bi?*.";’?l.*l_d_ ?iQCQ!fﬁi;ig to the information and explan'a'_t'_i__ci}_i__;_s given to us, the
company does ‘not.carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements
under sub-clause (a) of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

{b)  The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or
financjal institutions and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (b)
of clause (ii} of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

iii)  With respect to investments made in or any guarantee or security provided or any Joans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, granted during the year by the
Company to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties:

{a)  As per the information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and
records examined by us, during the year the Company has not provided any loans
ar guarantee or security. However, the Company has granted following loans in

the earlier years:

Particulars Amount |
(Rs. in
Million)

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year . .
Holding ' |
| Fellow subsidiary ’ N
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above cases
Holding
Feliow subsidiary

640.00

{b)  In our opinion and according to information and explanations given us and on the
basis of our audit procedures, the investments made, guarantee provided, security
given and the terms and conditions of all Joans and advances in the nature of loans
and guarantee provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to Company'’s interest. .

(c)  According to the books of accounts and records examined by us in respect of the
loans and advances in the nature of loans, where the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated, the repayments or receipts
are generally regular as per stipulated terms.

{d)  According to the books of accounts and records examined by us in respect of the
loans, there is no amnunt overdue for more than ninety days

{e) Inour opinion and according to information and explanation given and the books
of accounts and records examined by us, loans granted which have falien due
during the year have been renewed or extended as per details below and no fresh

Joans have been granted to settle the over.dues of existing loans given to the same

Jarties: : -
Particulars Aggregate amount | Percentage of the aggregate to the
RN of existing loans | total “loans or advances in the
renewed “or | nature ‘of Joans granted during the
A extended - | yearfor.. -
Holding Company | Rs. 640 Million - -

100 |

(N Thé__CQﬂ}paﬂ)f has not granted any loans or advances.in‘the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or.period of repayment to
Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the order is not applicable to the
Company, = 7h. . o TS

iv} In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us, the
company has not advanced any loans to directors / to a company in which the Director
is interested to which the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply. Further, based on
the information and explanations given to us, being an infrastructure company, the
provisions of section 186 of the Act to the extent of loans, guarantees and securities
granted are not applicable to the company. Hence, the reporting requirements under
clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

v)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit, Consequently,
the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

vi)  The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1} of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed
such records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have heen
made and maintained, We have not, however, made a detailed examination-of.the
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.




vii)

vii)

(x}

(xi)

{2)

(b)
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based on our examination of the books of the company, the company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any
other material statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six

months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory
dues referred to in clause {a) above which have not been deposited on account of

any dispute.

According to the information and explanations and representation given to us,
there are no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
and books of accounts-and records examined by us, the Company has not
defaulted .in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
.interest thereon to any lender. 7w

(b) ':_In our opinien, and accordillg__-_tq'f:the infbr__z'_l_';_}_é_nliun and explanations given to
2+ us, the Company has not been ‘declared ‘wilful defaulter by any bank or
- financia] institution or government or any government authority.(refer Note

' no. 9(1)(viii) to the ﬁnanci__ai_l__S_tatement]

In our opinion and accqif;_hng to the information nd explanations given to
us, no fresh term toans have been taken during the year.

(d)  Onan overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our
opinion, no funds raised on short term basis have been prima-facie being

used for long term purposes during the year.

(e) The company does not have any subsidiary, jeint venture or associate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (e) of clause (ix) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(f The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause {f) of clause (ix) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

(a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and hence clause (x}{a} of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential aliotment of
shares or fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures and Hence
reporting under clause {x){(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(a) Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose qf repjorting the
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explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b} During the year, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/Secretarial auditor or
by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year,

(xii} In our opinion, Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii} In our opinion and according te the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 and section
177 of the Act and their details have been disciosed in the financial statements etc.,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

[xiv) (a) In our gpinion, and. accoadmg to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has an ‘internal a dit "syqtpm commensurate with the size
_ and nature of its business,

j_-We have considered Use nler nal audit 1epo; ts of the Company 1ssued tii)
date, for the period under audlt for the ‘pur po:)e of planning our audit
. procedures. 5

W)

(xv} Accordmg to the information and cxplanatlons provtded by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Act. "

(xvi) (a) .:"Io ‘the best of our_know]edge and as exp]amed _;-__the Company is not
quuu ed to be :egtslel ed under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, : L

{b) I our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided
to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during
the year as per the Reserve bank of India Act 1934.

{c} In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided
to us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company {CIC} as defined in
the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) As represented by the management, the group does not have more than one
core investment company {CiC) as part of the group as per the definition of
group contained in Core Investment Companies (Reserved Bank) Directions,

2016.

(xvii) in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financialyear and in the

immediately preceding financial year.
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provisions of clause (xviii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company,

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management pians and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fail due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that ail liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when

they fall due.

{xx) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, The ‘Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) contribution under
section 135 ofthe Act is not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause (xx) (a) & (b} of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014

Narendra Khandal

Partner el
Membership No.: 065025 .-
UDIN : 23065025BGRDL04301

Place :Mumbai
Date :April26,2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORM FONE BEE) HNEANTIMLTANTS
STATEMENTS OF DS TOLL ROAD LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
financial statement of DS Toll Road Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on

that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering -the essential components of internal contrel stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit:of - JInternal  Financial Contlols Over Financial Reporting {the
"Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chattere c_count'mts of India (“ICAI"}. These
responsibilities mclude the design, zmp[ementat:on and ‘maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectlvely for ens iring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its busmess including adherence to Company's po]lues the safeguarding of its
assets, the pleventlon and detection of frauds: and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting:records, and the timely pl opal ation of lellab!e_ﬁnanaal information, as

required under' he Act.

Auditor’s Resp_o_nsibility

Ourr esponslbmty 13 1o express an oplmon on the Company's 11}temal fmancml controis over
financial reporting w1th reference. to . these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance w1th the Guidance Note issued by ICAl and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(103} of the Act, to the extent apphcablc to an audit
of internal financial contrels. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriaie &g proyide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial conprois-system-over

financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference To
These Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generaily
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company ;
and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With
Reference To These Financial Statements .- O

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, includingthe possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements ‘due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statement: to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial repor ing with reference to these
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes.in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deterjor

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best.of our information and according to the explai_n_a’_c_ipns given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E,

Narendra Khandai

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN: 23065025BGRDL0O4301

Place : Mumbai
Date :April 26,2023




DS Toll Road Limited
CIN: U23300MH2005PL.C154360
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

¥ Millions
, As at As at
Particulars Note  gust March, 2023 31st March, 2022
ASSETS
Neon-current assets
(a) Concession Intangible assets 4 1,381.32 1,732.23
(b) Financial Assets
- Other Financial Assets 5d 1.51 180.48
(¢} Current Tax Assets (Nef) 219 2.26
Total Non-current assets 1,385.02 1,914.97
Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
{i) Cash and cash equivalents 5a 14,12 51.87
(iiiy Loans 5b 640.00 640.00
(iv) Other financial asset 5¢ 8.35 9.76
(b} Other current assets 6 418 3.58
Total Current assets 666.65 705.21
Total Assets 2,051.67 2,620.18
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(&) Equity share capitat 7 52.10 52.10
(b) Subardinated debt (in nature of Equity) Ba 468,00 468.00
{c) Other equity 8 203.16 129.36
Total Equity 723.26 648.46
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financia! Liabilities
Borrowings 9a 335.52 985.96
(b) Provisions 12b 3.13 122.46
(¢} Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 185.75 135.73
Total Non -current liabilities 494,40 1,244,158
Current liabilities
(a) Financiai Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 8b 648.85 580.51
(i} Trade payables
i} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail
anterprises 10 T )
ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 101.62 85.85
(i) Other financial fiabilities 11 77.97 48.36
(b) Other current liahitities 13 4.45 1.55
{¢) Provisions 12a 1.12 0.50
Total Current liabilities 834.01 726.57
2,061.67 2.620.18

Total Equity and Liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integraf part of the Financial Statements.

As per our attached report of even date.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014F

Narendra Khandal
~Partner
Membership No. : 065025

Place: Mumbai
Date: Aprii 26,2023

. ¥or and on behaif of the Boafd

' Sandeep Joshi
Director
DIN: 09586595

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2023

Shailendra Jain
Director
DiN: 06393281




DS Toll Road Limited
CIN: U23300MH2005P1.C154360
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

T Millions
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note  mrarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from Operations 14 902.15 726.69
Other income 15 8.69 11.81
Total Income 910.84 738.60
Expenses
Toli Operation and Maintainence expenses 18 216.00 113.50
Empioyee benefits expense 17 25.56 16.22
Finance costs 18 205.89 251.08
Depreciation and amortization expense 4 350.91 284.04
Other expenses 19 16.64 16.84
Total expenses 815.00 B94.66
Profit f {loss) before tax 95.84 43.94
Tax expense
Current tax - .
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 20.54 16.37
Income {ax for earlier years - 3.49
Profit/(L.oss) after Tax 75.30 24.08
Other Comprehensive Income / {l.oss)
Hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans : Gains / (Loss) (2.02) {0.35)
Income 1ax relating to above (0.52) (0.09)
Other Comprehensive income/(Loss) {1.50) (0.26)
Total Comprehensive Incomef{Loss) 73.80 23.82
Earnings per equity share { face value per share Rs. 10 each)
25 14.45 4.62

Basic & Diluted
The accempanying notes are an integrai part of the Einancial Statements.

As per our attached report of even date.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014E

!}_{ai:endra Khandai
Partner
Membership No. : 065025

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Shhilendra Jain
Dirgctor
DIN' 06393281

| Sandeep Joshi
Director
DIN: 09586595

Place; Mumbai
Date: April 26,2023




DS Toll Road Limited

CIN: U23300MH2005PLC154360

Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
¥ Millions

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit/(Loss) before tax 95.84 43.94
Adiustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 350.91 284.04
inferest income (7.73) {11.36)
Finance Costs 205.89 251.06
Provision for Gratuity and Leave Encashment 0.80 0.09
Provision for resurfacing expenses 148.95 55.45
Excess provision for Leave Encashment written back . (0.55)
794.66 632.67
Cash Generated from Operations before
working capital changes
Adjusiments for;
{Increase)/decrease in financial assets 0.67 2.19)
(increase)/decrease in other current assets {0.60} 2.22
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 15.97 7.96
Increase/{decrease} in other financial liabilities 43.45 11.83
Increase/(decrease) in provisions {310.41) {149.86)
increase/(decrease) in ather current liabilities 2.89 {0.35)
{248.03) {130.59)
Cash generated from operations 546.63 502.08
Taxes (paid) net of refunds 0.08 {1.36}
Net cash flow generated from operating activities - {A) 546,71 500.72
8 CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment/ Redemption in Fixed Deposit more than 3 months 178.97 63.34
interest received 8.48 11.75
Net cash flow (used in}/ generated from investing activities - {B] 187.45 75.09
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of long term borrowings {592.65) (480.87}
Interest paid {179.25) {215.16)
Net cash flow used in financing activities - [C] (771.90) (706.03)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C] (37.74) (130.22)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 51.87 182.09
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14.13 51.87
Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - in Current accounts * 13.74 51.61
Cash on hand 0.38 (.26
Total Cash and cash equivalents { Refer Note § (b} ) 14.13 51.87
* Balance in current account with banks of ¥ 13.74 Million ( Z 51.61 Million) lying in escrow account held as

security against borrowings.

Note: The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7,
‘Statement of Cash Flows'.

Refer Note 29 - Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A 10 44 E of Ind AS 7 -Cash flow Statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our attached report of even date,

For MKPS & Associates For and on behaif of the)af:ard

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014E

“Narendra Khandal Sandeep Joshi Shiailendra Jain

Partner Director Ditector
Membership No. : 085025 DIN: 09586595 DiN: 06383281
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: Aprif 26,2023 Date: April 26,2023




DS Toil Road Limited

CiN: U23300MH2005PLC154360
Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Note 7 - EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL ¥ Miliions

Balance at the | Changes in equity { Balance at the end
Particulars beginning of the share capital of the year
year during the year
ior the year ended 3%st March, 2029 5210 - 52.10
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 5210 - 52.10
T Miltions

B. Note 8a - Subordinated debt (in nature of Equity}

Balance atthe | Changes during Balance at the end
Particulars beginning of the the year of the year
year
For the year ended 37sf March, 2022 468.00 - 468.00
ior the year ended 31st March, 2023 468.00 - 468.00
C Note 8 - OTHER EQUITY T Miliions
Reserves and
l
Particulars Surplus Total
Retained Earnings
Balance as at April 01, 2021 105.54 105.54
Profit/(l.oss) for the year 24.08 24.08
Other comprehensive income for the year (0.26) (0.26)
Total comprehensive income for the year 23.82 23.82
Balance as at 31st March 2022 129.36 129.36
Balance as at April 01, 2022 129.36 129.36
Profit{Loss) for the year 75.30 75.30
Other comprehensive income for the year {1.50) (1.50)
Total comprehensive income for the year 73.80 73.80
Balance as at 31st March 2023 203.16 203.16
As per cur altached report of even date.
For MKPS & Associates Faor and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014E
Ndrendra Khandal 'Sandeep Joshi Shailendra Jain
‘Partner Director Ditector
Membership No. : 065025 DIN; 09586595 NI NR203281
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26,2023 Date: April 26,2023
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DS Toll Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and of the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1: Corporate informafion

DS Toll Road Limited ("the Company”) was incorporated on June 29, 2005, has been awarded on Build,
Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis, the widening of existing two-lane covering 53.325 kms stretch from Km
373.275 (Start of proposed flyover at Dindugal Bypass) to- Km 426.80 (Samayanaliore} Section of
National Highway No.7 in the State of Tamiinadu and operation and maintenance thereof, under the
Concession Agreement dated January 30, 2006 with National Highways Authority of India. The
Concession Agreement is for a period of 20 years from the July 29, 2006 being the appointed date.

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance infrastructure Limited. At the end of the Concession
period, the entire facility will be transferred to NHAL

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on Aprif 28, 2023
Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Act the Central Government, income tax authorities and
other statutory regulatory body and section 131 of the Act the board of directors of the Company have
powers 10 amend / re-open the financial statements approved by the board / adopted by the members of

the Company.

The Company is a limited company incorporated and donviciled in india. The registered office of the
Company is located at Reliance Centre,19, Walchand Hirachand Marg, Bailard Estate, Mumbai 400 001

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Acl) [Companies (fndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. These Financial Statements have been
prepared in accardance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule
Il of the Act, applicable ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations,

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cosl basis, except for certain assels and
liabiliies which have been measured at fair value.

These Financial Statements are presented in ¥ Millions, except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and
disciosures mandated by Schedule ! to the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable prenouncements and

regulations.

Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies

3.1

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when if is:
»  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operaling cycle

»  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
= Cash or cash equivalent uniess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a iiability for at jeast

twelve months after the reporting period
Ali other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

*  ltis expected to be settied in normal operating cycle

=t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditionat right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting peried
All other liabilities are cfassified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reafization in
\Ccash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




DS Toli Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and of the year ended March 31, 2023

3.2 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional statements
are presented in Indian Rupees (¥}, which the company’s functional and presentation currency.

3.3  Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sefl the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

*  Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
= inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advaniageous market for the asset or liability

The principai or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants wouid
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financia! asset takes into accouni a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use e assel in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are availabic to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevainl vbservable inpuls and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assels and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized withinn the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest leve! input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the iowest level input that is significant o the fair value

measurement is directiy or indirectly observable
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabifities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recuiring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (hased on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for hoth recurring and non -
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured

at fair value,

Al each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the iatest valuation by agreeing the
information in the vaiuation compulation {o contracts and other relevant documents.

The management aiso compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
externai sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and iiabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or fiabifity and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the

relevant notes.
Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions of Financial instruments

(including those carried at amortised cost {note 20) and Guantitative disclosures of fair value measurement
nierarchy {note 21).




D8 Toll Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and of the year ended March 31, 2023

3.4 Revenue recognition

35

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those services.

Toll revenue
The income from toll revenue from operations of the facifity is accounted on accrual basis.

Others

Insurance and other claims are recagnized as revenue on certainty of receipt basis.
interest Income on financial assets measured at amortized cost is recognised using the effective interest

rate method.
Dividends are recognised in the Statement of profit and foss only when the right to receive payment is

esizhlished.

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement
The Company has Toll Road Concession rights where it Builis, Operates and Transfers (BOT)

infrastructure used to provide public service for a specified period of time. These arrangements may
include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life.

These ammangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset
model is used fo the extent that the Company receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public
service. The financial asset model Is used when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
When the unconditional right o receive cash covers only part of the service, the twoe models are combined
to account separately for each component. If the Company performs more than one service (ie.,
construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single confract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services

delivered, when the amounts are separalely identifiable.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred to acquire assel, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered.

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected tolt
revenue which reflects the patlern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected
total toil revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case of
any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefils. Refer note 22 for description and

significant terms of the concession agreements.

Financial assefs model

The financial asset mode! applies when the operator has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the grantor in remuneration for concession services. In the case of concession
services, the operator has such an unconditional right if the grantor confractually guarantees the payment
of amount specified or determined in the contract or the shortfall, if any, between ameounts received from
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Contract,

Financial Assets resulting from application of Appendix A and Appendix B of Ind AS 11 are recorded in the
Balance Sheet under the heading "Other Financial Assets” and recognized at amortised cost.

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may inciude a payment commitment on the part of
the concession grantor covering only part of investment, with the balance to be recovered from by charging
users of service . In such arrangements the investment amount guaranteed by the concession grantor is
recognized under the financial asset model and the residuat balance is recognized under the intangible

asset model.

Any asset carrded under concession arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to the

financial asset expire.

Maintenance obligations

Contractual obligafions to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure {principally resurfacing cysisfana




DS Toll Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and of the year ended March 31, 2023

36

major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the Infrastructure asset in
operational condition except for any enhancement element) are recognized and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date for which
nex! resurfacing would be required as per the concession arrangement. The provision is discounted fo its
present value at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific to the liability.
Taxes

Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Current income tax relating {o items racngnized outside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject {o interpretation and

establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum Alternate T'ax ('MAT') under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1981 is recognised as current tax
in the statement of profif and loss. MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to future income fax liability, is considered as an asset if there is a
cenvincing evidence that the Company will pay normaf tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the balance sheet when it is probabie that the future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the

Company,
Current tax assets and liabilities are offsel only if, the Company:

a)has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b}intends either to seftle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liabifity simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financiaf reporting purposes at the reporting

date.

Deferred tax liabilities and assels are recognized for al taxabie temporary differences

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused lax losses {o the extent that it is probable that taxabie profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

fosses can be ulilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced te the extent
that it Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow ali or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized {o the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is seftied, based on tax rates {(and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax refating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (sither in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognized in correfation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax iiabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.




DS Toil Road Limited
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3.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atfributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the peried in which they oceur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost aiso includes exchange differences fo the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing costs.

3.8 Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on 2 straight
line basis over the lease term.

3.8 Contingent liabilities and contingent Assets

A contingent Hability is a possible obfigation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or nen-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recoghised because it cannot be measured reliably, The contingent
liabitity is not recognised in the books of accounts but its existence is disclosed in the Financial
Statements. A Contingent assel is not recognized in financial statements, however, the same are disclosed

where an inflow of economic benefil is probable.

3.10 Impairment of non-financiat assets

Non-financial assets are lested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
assel’s carrying amounl exceeds ifs recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing Impairment, assets
are grouped at the lewest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assels or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of

each reporting period.

3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {tegai or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed the reimbursement is recoghized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time vajue of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

3.12 Employee benefits

{i} Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be seftled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current

employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

{ii} Leave obligations

The Company provides sick leave and privitege ieave to its employees.
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Privilege and sick leave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated portion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the porion that wil! lapse. The
portion that is expecled to be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic saiary of the employee
and for the portion that is expected to be availed, the valuations are based on the employees’ total
compensation. The fability for earned leave is also classified as current where it is expected to be
availed/ en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-current. The
amounts of current and nen-current liability are based on actuarial estimates.

{iii) Post - employment obligations

The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including
(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity
(b) defined contribufien plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The liabifity or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefil gratuily plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent acluaries

using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined henefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the relaled obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cosl is included in employee benefit expense

in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjusiments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recoghized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are inctuded in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the

halance sheet,

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit ohligation resulting from plan amendments or
curiailments are recogrized immediately in profit or Joss as past service cost,

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions fo publicly administered provident funds as per iocal
regulations. The Company has no further payment obiigations once the contributions have been
paid. The coniributions are accounted for as defined coniribulion plans and the contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
a¢ an asset 1o the exteni that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of ithree months or less, which are subject fo an insignificant rigsk of

changes in vaiue.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shori-term
deposits, as defined above, net of cutstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an infegral part of

the Company’s cash management.

3.14 Financial insfruments

A financial instrument is any contracl that gives rise to a financial assel of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised inifially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of direclly attributable transaction cost to the acquisitionZet

%
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the financtal asset. Purchases or sales of financia! assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by reguiation or convention in the market place {regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories;

»  at amortised cost
= &t fair vaiue through profit or loss (FVTPL)
»  at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCIH)

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a} The asset is held within a businese model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cagh flows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates o cash flows that are solely payments of

principai and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financial
assets {excepl Investments) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinabie payments that

are not quoted in an active market,

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured al amortised cosi using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amorlised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs thal are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
inciuded in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognhized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to loans and other

receivables.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

Alf investments in scope of ind AS 108 are measured at fair value. The Company has investment in mutual
funds which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides {o classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then al} fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive income. There is no recycling
af the amounts from Othar Comprehensive Income (OCI) fo the Stalement of Profit and Loss, even on sale
of investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumutative gain or loss within equity. Instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the

Statement of Profi{ and Loss.
De-recognition

A financial assel {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company's similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third pary under & 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either {a) the Company has fransferred substantially ai the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When # has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset {o the
extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
fiability. The transferred asset and the associated fiability are measured on a basig thaf reflects the rights

and obligations that the Company has retained.




DS Toll Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and of the year ended March 31, 2023

impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCL The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company has three types of financial assets subject to Ind AS 109's expected credit loss model:
»  Loans receivables measured at amorised cost

*  Retentions receivable, grant receivable from NHAI

*  Loans given to employees
The impairment methodology for each class of financial assets stated above is as follows:

Loans receivables measured at amortised cost: Loans receivabies at amortised cost are generally short
term in nature considered te be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months

expected credit iosses.

Loans given to employees: For loans given to empioyees outstanding as on the reporting dates, the has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of default at the initial recognition of each and every loan
or receivable would result in undue cost and effort. As permitted by Ind AS 109, the credit provision will be
determined based on whether credit risk is low only at each reporting date, untit the loan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methodology the Company has assessed thal no foan loss aflowance needs o be

recorded in the hooks of accounis.

Expecled credit loss ('ECL') impairment loss aliowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is

dascribed below:

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and other contraclual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral pari of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount, Until the assef meets write-off criteria, the

Company does not reduce impairment ailowance from the gross carrying amount.
Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial fiabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and barrowings, frade payables or other payabies.

All financial liabilittes are recognized initially at fair value,

The Company's financial liabifities inciude trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
averdrafts and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities al amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR} method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking inte account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the £iR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

This Is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However, the Company
has borrowings at fleating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interest rate, is not material. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the fiabilities are derecognized as well as through the transaction cost amortization process.
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3.15

3.16

{i}

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obiigations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppiiers. Accounts payable are classified as current {fabilities if payment is due within
one year or iess {or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). if not, they are presented as

non-current hiabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Retention money payabie

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Retention moneys are measured at Fair vaiue initially.
Subsequently, they are measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective interest rate) method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as welf as

through the EIR amortization process.
De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liabilily is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same iender on substantiafly
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognifion of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financfal assets and financial Hiabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance shest if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settie the liabilities simuftaneousiy.

Segment information

Operating segmenis are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). Chief operating decision maker's function is to aflocate the rescurces
of the entity and access the performance of the operating segment of the entity.

The Board assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. # is identified as being the chief operating decision maker for the company,

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed fo be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimales and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the reiated actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment {o the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are

disclosed below.

Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toH roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix A of ind AS 11 'Service concession arrangements’ is
applicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private service
concession arrangements. The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHAI as per
which the Company would participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFQT) basis
the toli roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has to transfer the
infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to National Highway Authorities of fndia (NHAIY.

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangible assets recognized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement.
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(ii) Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating to carried forward tax losses to the extent there
are sufficient taxable temporary differences relating te the same taxation authority against which the
unused tax losses can be utilized. However, the utilization of tax losses also depends on the ability of the
Company to satisfy cerlain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future
taxable profits and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in relation to tax iosses.

(i) Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible assel recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected
total toll revenue is based on the independent fraffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case
of any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits.

{iv) Provision for resurfacing obligation {major maintenance expendifure)

The Company records the resurfacing obligation for its present obligation as per the concession
arrangement to maintain the toll roads at every five years during the concession period. The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the expected future payments. The
calculations to discount these amounts to their present value are based on the estimated timing of

expenditure occurring on the roads.

The discount rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determined through
reference to the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure.

3.17 Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('"MCA") notifies new standards or amendments 1o the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements ~This amendment requires the entities to disclose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after st April 2023,

Ind AS 8-Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors ~This amendment has
introduced a definition of accounting estimates and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes-This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemplion
so that # does not apply fo fransactions that give rise 1o equal and offsetting temporary differences. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023,

The Company is evaluating the impact of the amendments on the financial statement.
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Note 4 - Intangible assets

% Millions
Particulars Toll Collection rights
Year ended March 2022
Opening gross carrying amount 3,888.94
Additions -
Disposals -
Ciosing gross carrying amount 3,888.94
Accumulated Amortization and impairment
Opening accumulated Amortization and impairment 1,862 .67
Amortization expenses for the year 294.04
Disposals -
Closing accumutated Amortization and impairment 2.156.71
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 1,732.23
As at 31st March, 2023
Opening gross carrying amount 3,888.94
Additions -
Disposals -
Closing gross carrying amount 3,888.94
Accumutafed Amortization and impairment
Opening accumulaled Amortization and impairment 2,156.71
Amortization expenses for the year 350.91
Disposals -
Ciosing accumulated Amortization and impairment 2,507.62
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 1,381.32

Note
1. The above Intangible Asset are pledged as security with lenders.

2. Flat at Berivali in Mumbai district of Rs 1.01 Million is included in gross block of
Intangible assels.

3. All the title deeds of immovable property are held in the name of the company.

4. No proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988. Therefore the
disclosure of details of Benami Property heid is not appiicable,
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¥ Milifons

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

Note 5 - Financial Assets - Current

Nofte § (a) - Cash and Cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- in Escrow/Current accounts

Cash on hand

Note 5 (b) - Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)

t.oans - Intercorporate Deposits to
Related parties { Refer Note No. 26 )

Note 5 (¢} - Qther financial assefs - current
{Unsecured, considered good)

interest accrued on lixed deposits

Other Receivable

Claims receivable from NHAI

Note 5 (d} - Other financial assets - Non - current
{Unsecured, considered good)

Bank Deposits with maturity of more than twelve months
Security Deposits

Note 6 - Other Current assets
{Unsecured, considered good})
Advance to vendors

Advance o employees

Prepaid Expenses

Duties and taxes receivable

13.74 51.61
0.38 0.26
14.12 51.87
640.00 640.00
640.00 640.00
- 0.75
4.15 4.79
4.20 4.22
8.35 9.76

- 178.97
1.51 1.51
1.51 186.48

- 0.28
0.15 0.20
2.175 2.25
1.28 0.84
418 3.58
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Note 7 - Share Capital

Note 7a - Authorised Equity Share Capital

T Millions

Nos of Shares

Particulars

At the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000

Add : Increase during the year -

At the end of the year 1,00,00,000

Note 7b - issued, subscribed and paid-up equity

share capital

Al the beginning of the year 52,10,000

Add : Increase during the year -
52,10,000

At the end of the year

Note 7¢ - Terms and rights attached to equity shares

BEET
31st March, 2023

Asal
31st March, 2022

100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
52.10 52.10
52.10 5210

(). The Company has only ene class of shares referred 1o as Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity

share is entitiled to one vote per share.

(ii}. In the event of iiquidation of the company, the holders of the equily shares will be entitled to receive ail of the remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of ali preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity share held by the

sharehoiders

Note 7d - Reconciliation of nos of Shares

Particulars

As at
3ist March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

Nos of Shares at the beginning of the year
Add : Nos of Shares issued during the year
Nos of Shares at the end of the year

Note 7e - Shares held by the holding
Company or their subsidiariesfassociates

Reliance Infrastructurs Limited and its Nominees
{Holding Company)

Note 7T - Details of Shareholders holding more than §% shares in the Company

" Reliance Infrastructure Limited and its Nominees

Nos of Shares
% of holding

Note 7g - Details of Shareg Pledged/safekeep & unpledged by the Promotors ; -

Particulars

Pledged Shares
Safekeep
Unptedged
Total

Note 7g - Detfails of Shares held by promoters

52,10,000 52,10,000
£2.10,000 52,10,000
52.10,000 52,10,000
$2,10,000 52,110,000
100% 100%
As at As at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
42,20,100 42,20,100
9,89,840 9,89,840

60 &0
52,410,000 52,10,000

% change during

Sr  |Promoter Name No. Of Shares % of Shares the year
1]|Rediance Infrastructure Limited _ — . N £2,10,000 100.00% 0.00%
Total 52,10,000 100.00%F _0.00%]
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¥ Millions
] Asat As al

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note 8a - Sub-ordinated deht (in nature of equity)
At the beginning of the vear 468.00 468.00
Increase / (decrease) during the year - -
At the end of the year 468.00 468.00
Note 8a(i) - Sub-ordinated debt infused by holidng company
Reiiance Infrastructure Limited (Holding Company) 468.00 468.00

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts infused by holding company
i} Subordinated debt is the part of Equity from the promoters of the company for the project, WhICh is
unsecured and interest free as per Common Loan agreement with the lenders;

iy No repayment/redemplionfinterest servicing allowed during the moratorium peried of the long term
project loan.

Note 8b - Retained Earnings

Al the beginning of the year 129.36 105.54
Net Profit/{Loss) for the year 75.30 24.08
ltems of ather comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained earnings
- Remeasuremens of post-employemenis {1.50) (0.26)
obiigations (net of tax}
At the end of the year 203.16 129.36
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Financial Liabilities

Note 9{a) - Borrowings - Non current T Milfions
out As at As at

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Secured
Secured Term loans
From banks

- From banks 259.81 759.74
From financial institulions

- From financial instilutions 75.71 22622
Total 335,52 985.06

1) Secured Term Loan from Banks & Financial Institutions of Rs. 984.66 million {Outstanding Principal

undiscounted amount) ;
The Borrowings are secured by the way of terms stated in Common Loan Agreement entered between the

Company and Consortium of lenders:-
(7} a first ranking pari passu morigage/charge over il the Borrower's immoveable and movable properties, both

present and future, except the Project Assets. ;
(if) a first ranking pari passu charge on all the Borrower's bank accounts including, but not limited to the Escrow

Account! its Sub-Accounte whore ofl revenuea, Disbursements, receivables shal be tluposiled aod i alt lunds
from time te tme deposiled therein and in all Permilied investments or olher securities representing al

amounls credited to the Escrow Account.

(il}} a first ranking pari passu charge on all movable tangible and intangible assets of the Borrower {clher than
those specified in paragraphs (i) above and (iv) below) including but net limited 10 ils goodwill, undertzking and
uncalied capital, both present and fulure, except the Project Assets.;

(iv) & first ranking pari passu charge over / assignmenl of the right, tilie, interests, benefits, claims and
demands of the Borrower in, fo and under any ietter of credit, guarantees {except the guarantees issuved in
favour of NiHAI) including confractor guarantees and liquidaled damages and performance bond provided by

any parly to the Projec! Documents.

(vIThe interest will be paid monthly as per the applicable Interest rates,

{vi) The carrying amounls of assels pledge as securily for non current borrowings are considered in note no.
28.

vif} Filing of the quarterly returns or statements of currenl assets is not applicable to the company.

viii) None of the Banks / Fil / olher lenders has declared the company as willul defauller in accordance wilh
guidelines on wilful defaulfers issued by RBL. Hence wilful defauller disclosure is not applicable.
ix) No charges or satisfaction is pending to be registered with ROC beyound the statutory period.

2) The applicable interest rate for Rupee Term |oan varies from 11.10% to 12.10% p.a.
Maturily Profile of Secured loan from athers { Principat undiscounted) is as under:

¥ Millions
Rupee Loan from Rupeea Loan from
Particulars up Bk © Financial Total
Instilutions
FY 2023-24 500.33 148.52 G48.85
FY 2024-25 260.03 75.79 335.81
Total 760.35 224 31 984.66
Note 9 (b) - Borrowings - Current
. As at As al
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Current Maturities of iong term dabt 648.85 580.51
{ Keter note Yaj} (1) 10r securty)
590.51

648.85
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Note 10 - Trade Payables ¥ Millions
- Agat Zeal
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and smafi enlerprises -
Total outslanding dues of credifors other than 104.62 85.65
micro enlerprises and small enferprises ’

101.62 85.65

a) Trade Payables ageing schedule
As at 31st March, 2023

. Qutstanding for below periods from dale of transaction
Particulars Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 [More than Tofal
1 Year Years ! 3 Years
1) MSME - - - - -
2y Others 86.22 0.10 - 8.73 95.05
3} Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
4} Disputed Dues - Cthers - - - - -
5) Unbilted Dues - - - - 6.57
Total 86.22 018 - 8.73 101.62
As at 31st March, 2022
Outstanding for below periods from daie of transaction
Particulars Less than 2-3 | More than
1 Year 1-2 Years Years | 3 Years Total
1y MSME - - - - -
2) Qlhers 61.65 948 | 1.43 7.70 79.86
3) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
4} Disputed Dues - Olhers - - - - -
5) Unbifled Dues - - - - 5.69
Total 61.65 948 113 7.70 B5.65

b} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Disclasure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006" is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such
vendors under the said Act, as per the intimalion received from them on requests made by the company.
There are no overdue principal amountsfinterest payable amounts for delayed payments o such vendors al
the Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any
eariler years and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of
payments made during the year or brought forward from previous vears.
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Note 11 - Other financiat tiabilities T Millions
Particul As at As at
articulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Inferest Accrued but not due 4.68 18.52
Employee benfits payable 8.23 8.55
Retenfion money payable 65.06 21.29
Total 77.97 48.36
Foot Note:

* Retention Payables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2023

Qutstanding for below periods from date of transaction
Particulars t.ess than 1-2 Years 2-3 Mare Total
1 Year Years | than 3
Years
1) Retention money payable 50,57 9.53 - 4,96 65.06
Total 50.57 9,53 - 4.96 65.06

* Retention Payables ageing schedule
As al March 31, 2022

Outslanding for below periods from date of iransaclion
Patliculars Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 More than Total
1 Year Years | 3 Years

1) Retention money payable 16.07 0.26 - 4.96 21.29
Total 16.07 0.26 - 4.96 21.29
¥ Millions

- As at Ag al

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31sl March, 2022

Note 12 (a) - Provisions - Current
Provision for employee benefits

- Gratuity 0.60 0.46
- Leave encashment 0.06 0.04
Others
- Resurfacing expenses 0.46 -
1.12 (.50
Note 12 (b) - Provisions - Non - Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 2.39 0.30
- Leave encashment 0.74 0.41
Others
- Resurfacing expenses - 121.75
3.13 122.46
Movement of Resurfacing provisions is as follows;
At the beginning of the year 121.75 185.71
Charged / (credited) to Statement of Profit and Loss
Provision madefreversed during the year 148.95 55.45
unwinding of discount 39.83 2971
Amount utilised during the year {31017} {149.12)
Al the end of the year 0.46 121.75

Resurfacing provisions - significant estimates

As per the service concession arrangement with NHAJ, the Company is obligated to carry oul resurfacing of the
roads under concession. The Company accrues the provision required towards resurfacing cost in statement of
profit & loss in accordance with Ind AS 37 ' Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. Refer
Note no. 3.5 maintenance obligations. These provisions are made based on the best estimate of the
management which are reviewed periodically and necessary effect for the changes, if any, are taken in the

financials on prospective basis.

Note 13 - Other current fiabilities

Advances from Customers 0.44 0.40
Dufies and taxes payable 4.0% 1.15
4.45 i 1.55
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Note 14 - Revenue

Operating income
- Income from toll collections { Refer note No. 32)
Other Operating income

Note 15 - Other income

Interest income

- Onfixed deposits

- Others

Excess provision for |.eave Encashment written back
Insurance claim received

Note 16 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses
Subcontracting expenses

Maintainence of Roads

Electricity expenses

Handling Charges

Site and other direct expenses

Note 17 - Employee henefits expenses
Salaries wages and bonus

Contribution to provident funds and other funds
Gratuity

Leave encashment

Staff welfare expenses

Note 18 - Finance Costs

interest on loan from Banks and financial Institutions
Unwinding of discount on provisions
Other finance charges

Note 19 - Other expenses
Rent

Rates & taxes

Insurance

Legal and Professional Charges
Expenditure toward Corporate Social responsibility
Auditors Remuneration

- Audit Fees

- Certification Fees

Travelling and Conveyance

Other miscelfaneous expenses

T Miflions

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

901.68 726.26
0.47 0.43

902.15 726.69
7.62 11.36
0.10 -

- 0.65
0.9¢ -
8.69 11.91

25.02 26,18
188.07 84.41
2.30 2.05
0.28 0.54
0.36 0.3z
216.00 113.50
23.42 16.07
1.17 0.85
0.22 0.09
0.58 -
0.17 0.21
25.56 16.22
154.44 220.54
39.93 29.71
11.52 0.81
205.89 251.06

- 0.08
0.01 0.00
9.23 11.23
6.45 5.70

- 1.53
0.24 0.24
0.35 0.30
0.36 0.76

16.64 19.84
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Note 20 - Fair value measurements

Financial Instruments by category ¥ Milfions
Significance of financial instruments
Classification of financial instruments

As at As at

Particulars

J1st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Financial assets

At amortised Cost
Loans
Fixed deposits with maturity of more than 12 months
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Other Receivable
Cash and Cash equivalent
Other financial assets
Claims receivable from NIHAI

Total financial assets

Financiaf liabilities

Atameortised Cost
Floating Rate Borrowings
Trade Payables
Retention money payable
interest accrued but nol due
Employee Benefits Payable
Total financial liabilities

640.00 640.00
- 178.97

- 0.75
4.15 4.79
14.12 51.87
1.51 1.5%
4.20 4.22
663.98 882,11
0984.37 1,576.47
101.62 85.65
65.06 21.29
4.68 18.52
§.23 8.55
1163.96 1710.48
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Note 21 - Fair value Hierarchy

¥ Millions

(a} Fair vatue hierarchy - Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are
disclosed

. As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Financial liabilities

level 3

Floating Rate Borrowings 984.37 1,576.47

Retention morey payable 65.06 21.29

Total financial liabifities 1049.43 1597.76

Recognised fair value measurements

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counte
derivatives) is determined using vafuation fechniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as
litthe as possible on entity-specific estimates. I all significant inputs required to fair vaiue an instrument are observable
lhe insliument Is included in level 2.

Level 3: [f one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included ir
level 3. This is the case for borrowings, debentures, Retention money payable and hedging derivative included in leve

3

Valuation technique used to determine fair vafue

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

« the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for simitar instruments

* the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates a

the balance sheet date
+ the fair vaiue of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash fiow analysis.




{b) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

T Millions
- ASat As at
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Financial liabilities
Carrying value of financial liabilities at amortised cost

Floating rate borrowings 984.37 1,676.47
Retention money payable 65.06 21.28
1,049.43 1,597.76

Fair value of financial labilities carried at amortised cost
Floating rate borrowings 284,37 1,576.47
Retention money payabie 65.06 21.29
1,049.43 1,697.76

The carrying vaiue amounts of fixed deposits, interest accrued on deposits, cash and cash equivaients,

trade payabies, interest accrued, empioyee benefits payable and Retention maney payable approximate
their fair value due fo their short term nature,

For financial assets and fiabifities that are measured at fair vaiue, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair
values.
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Note 22 - Concession arrangements - Main features X Mitlions
Name of; Description of Significant terms of the arrangement Intangible Assets Financial
entity | the arrangement Gross book | Net book Asset

value value
DS Toll {Financing, design, [Period of concession: 2006 - 2026 March 31, March 31, {March 31,
Road building and Remuneration : Tolf 2023 2023 2023
Limited |operation of 53 fnvestment grant from concession grantor : 3,888.94 1,381.32 -
kilometre long four | Yes March 31, March 31, | March 31,
lane toll road [nfrastructure return at the end of 2022 2022 2022
between Dindugal {concession period ; Yes 3,888.04 1732.23 .
and Samyanallore |Investment and renewal obligations : Nil
on National Re-pricing dates : Yearly
Highway 7 Basis upon which re-pricing or re-
negotiation is determined : Inflation
Premium payabie to grantor : Nil
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Note 23 - Financial risk management

The Company activities exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order fo minimize any adverse effects on
the financial performance of the Company, derivative financial instruments, such as principal only swaps are entered to
hedge certain foreigh currency risk exposure. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purpose and not as trading or

speculative instruments
This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity is manage the risk.

Risk Exposure arising Measurement Management
from
Credit risk Cash and cash Aging analysis Diversification of
equivalents, trade Credit ratings bank deposits, credit
receivables, limits and lefters of
financial assets credit

measured at
amonised cost.

Market risk — foreign exchange Recognized Cash flow Actively Managed
financial assets and  forecasting
liabiiities not Sensitivity analysis

denominated in
Indian rupee (INR)
Market risk — interest rate Long-term Sensitivity anaiysis Actively Managed
borrowings al
variable Rates

Liguidity risk Borrowings and Rolling cash flow  Availabifity of
other liabilities forecasts committed credit
{ines and borrowing
facilities

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a project finance team and central treasury team (group treasury) under
policies approved by board of direclors. Group treasury identifies, evaiuates and hedges financial risk in close co-operation
with the Company's operating units. The Management of the Company provides written principles for overal! risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial
instrument and non-derivative financial instrument, and investments of excess liquidity.

Commodity risk:

The Company requires for impiementation {construction, operation and maintenance) of the projects, such as cement,
bitumen, steel and other construction materiais. For which, The Company entered into fixed price contract with the EPC
contractor and O&M Contractor so as to manage our exposure 1o price increases in raw materials. Hence, the sensitivity

analysis is not required
Market risk — interest rate risk

The Bank loans follows floating rates with resets defined under agreements. While interest rate fluctuations carry a risk on
financials, The Company earn toll income which is finked to WP thus providing a natural hedge to the interest rate risk.

a) Interest rate risk exposure Z Millions
. As at AS at
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Variable Rate Borrowings 884.37 1,576.47
Fixed Rate Borrowings - -
Total 98437 1,576.47
Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expenses from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.
i AS at A5 at
Impact on profitioss after tax 31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022
Interest rates (increase) by 100 basis points {8.31) (13.31)!
Interest rates decrease by 100 basis points 8.31 13.31
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Liquidity risk - Table

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral
obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company objective is to, at all times maintain optimum
levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position
and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adeqguate sources of financing including debt from
banks at an optimized cost. The liguidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial
liabifities. The average credit period taken to settie trade payables is about 30 fo 60 days. The carrying amounts
are assumed to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. The following table analyses financial liabilities by

remaining contractual maturities.

The table below analyses the group's non-derivative financial liabilities and net-seftled derivative financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. Derivative financial liabilities are included in the analysis if their contractual maturities are essential
for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

T Millions
As at 31st March, 2023 Upto Cne  More than One Total
Year Year
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 648.85 335.81 984.66
interest on Berrowings 89.62 9.57 99.20
Frade and other payables 101.62 101.62
Other financial fiabilifies 73.28 - 73.28
Total non-derivatives 913.38 345.38 1,258.75
As at 31st March, 2022 Upto One  More than One Total
Year Year
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 590.51 886.80 1,577.31
Interest on Borrowings 177.72 83.98 261.68
Trade and other payables 85.65 - 85.65
Other financial liabilities 29.84 - 29.84
Total non-derivatives 883.72 1,070.76 1,954.48




and cash equivalenis.

In order to achieve this averall objective, the Company capital management, amongst other things,
aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings
that define capial structure requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital for year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing
ratio:

Net debt including total borrowings (net of cash and cash equivalents)
divided by
Totat ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet).
¥ Millions
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Net debt (@) 970.25 1,524.60
Equity (b) 723.26 649.46
Net debt to equity ratio (a) / (b) 1.34 2.35
T Miflions
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
et debt {a) 970.25 1,524.60
Equity (b) 723.26 649,46
Nebt debt plus Equity (c = a+b) 1,693.51 2,174.08
Gearing ratio (a) / ¢ 0.57 0.70

DS Toll Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 24 - Capital risk management
The Company objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purpose of the Company capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium, sub-debts and all other equity reserves attributabie fo the equity holders of the parent. The
primary objective of the Company capital management is fo maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. Te maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
interest free sub-ordinate debt. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company policy is fo keep optimum gearing ratio. The
Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash



DS Toll Road Limited
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Note 25 - Earning Per Share

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Profit / Loss attributable to equity shareholders (Rs Miflions} (A)

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted
earnings per share (B)

Earnings / (Loss) per share (Basic and diluted) (Rupees) (AB)

Nominal value of equily shares (Rupees}

75.30

52,10,000

14.45

10.00

24.08

52,10,000

482

10.00
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Notfe 26 - Related Party Transactions

As per Ind AS-24 " Related Party Disclosure” the Company's related parties and transactions' with them in the

ordinary course of business are disclosed below :

Hofding Company
- Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Key Management Personnel

Rajesh Das - Director (cession w.e.f. April 26, 2022)
Shailendra K Jain - Directer

Sandeep Joshi - Director { w.e.f. April 26, 2022)
Madan Pendse - Director

Details of transactions and closing bailance :

T Miitions

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Transactions during the year :

Balance Sheet lteims:
Payable on transfer of employee loan balance

Reliance Defence Limited
Balances at the year end:
Trade payable

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Reiiance Defence Limited

Inter-corporate deposit
Retiance Infrastructure Limited

Sub-debts (in nature of equity)
Reliance Infrasfructure Limited

Equity share capital (excluding premiumy)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

0.43

3.32

0.43

640.00

468.00

§2.10

There were no payment made during the year to any Key Management Personnel

3.32

§40.00

468.00

52.10
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Note 27 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
T Miilions

a) Defined contribution plan

The following amount recognized as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on account of provident fund and ather funds. There

are no other obfigations other than the contribution payabie to the respective authorities.

Contribution te provident fund and other funds

As af

J1st March, 2023

As at

31st March, 2022

1.17

0.85

1.17

0.85

Total

a) Defined benefit plan
The Company Group has a defined benefit plan {Gratuity) for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of

Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employee who has completed five years of service is enfitled to specific benefit. The level of
benefits provided depends on the member’s fength of service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has completed five
years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (fast drawn satary) for each completed year of service as per

the provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with total ceiling on gratuity of Rs.1,000,020/-. The said gratuity plan is funded.

The following tables summaries the The amounts recognised in the batance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit

obiigation over the vear are as follows:
T Millions
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Opening defined benefit liability / (assets) 274 2.37
Current service cost 0.18 0.08
Past service cost - -
interest cost on benefit obligation 0.16 0.12
{Gain) / losses on settlement - -
Measurement during the period due io ;
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in inferest expense/(income) - -
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions {0.12) 0.01
Actuarial foss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions 0.03 (0.01)
Actuarial loss / {gain} arising on account of experience changes 214 0.38
Experience (gains)iosses - -
Benefit Paid - {0.1%)
Closing net defined benefit liability / (asset) - A 513 274
As at As at

Opening fair value of plan assets *

Interest cost on benefit obligation

(Gain) / losses on setement

Measurement during the period due to :

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/{income)
Actuarial loss / {gain) arising from change in financial assumptions

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes

Experience (gains)/losses

Asset ceiling not recognised as an asset

Closing fair value of plan assets - B

3tst March, 2023

31st March, 2022

1.99

1.87
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Note 27 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
T Millions

a) Defined contribution plan

The following amount recognized as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on account of provident fund and other funds. There

are no other obligations other than the contribution payabie to the respective authorities.

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Contribution to provident fund and other funds 117 .85

Total .17 0.85

a} Defined benefit plan
The Company Group has a defined benefit plan (Gratuity) for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of

Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Act, employee who has completed five years of service is entifled to specific benefit. The level of
benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has completed five
years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary} for each completed year of service as per

the provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with totaf ceiling on gratuity of Rs.1,000,000/-. The sald gratuity plan is funded.

The following tables summaries the The amounts recognised in the balance sheef and the movements in the net defined benefit

obligation over the year are as follows:

2 Milians
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Opening defined henefit liability / (assets) 2.74 2.37
Current service cost 0.18 0.08
Past service cost - -
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.18 0.12
(Gain) / fosses on settlement - -
Measurement during the period due to
Retumn on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) - -
Acluarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions {0.12) 0.1
Actuarial loss / {gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions 0.03 {0.01)
Actuarial foss / (gain) atising on account of experience changes 2,14 0.38
Experience {gains)/losses - -
Benefit Paid - (0.18)
Closing net defined benefit liability / (asset) - A 5.13 2.74
Asat As at

Opening fair value of pian assets *

interest cost on benefit obiigation
(Gain} / losses on settiement

Measurement during the period due to
Return on pfan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/{income)

Actuarial ioss / {gain) arising from change in financiai assumptions
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes
Experience (gains)/losses

Asset ceiling not recognised as an asset

Closing fair value of plan assets - B

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

1.99

0.1

1.87
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Note 28: Assets pledged as security
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

T Millions
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Financial assets
First charge
Bank balances - -
Loans 640.00 640.00
Other financial assets 8.36 9.76
Floating charge
Cash and cash equivalenis 14.12 5%.87
Non-financial assets
First charge
Other Current Assets 4.18 3.58
Total current assets pledged as security 666.65 705.21
Non-current
Financial assets
First charge
Security deposils 1.51 180.48
Non-financial assets
First charge
Intangible Assets 1,381.32 1,732.23
intangible Assets under development - -
Total non-current assets pledged as security 1,382.83 1,912.71
Total assets pledged as security 2,049.48 2.617.92
Note 29: Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A to 44 E of Ind AS 7 - Statement of cash flows
T Millions
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{.ong term Borrowings
Opening Balance 1.576.47 2,086.53
L.oan availed during the year - -
interest convert info Lean - -
Changes in Fair Value
~ Impact of Effective Rate of Interest 0.55 0.81
Repaid During the year {592.85) {490.87)
Closing Balance 984.37 1,676.47
interest Expenses
Opening Balance 18.52 13.15
interest Charge as per Statement Profit & L.oss 205.89 251.06
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rate of interest {0.55) (0.81)
- Interest convert into Loan - -
- Unwinding of Discount on provisions (39.23) (29.71)
- Other - ~
Interest paid tfo Lenders (179.25) {215.16)
4.68 18.52

Cilosing Balance

Note 30: The Company is engaged in "Road Infrastructure Projects” which in the context of Ind AS 108
"Operating Segment” is considered as the only segmeni. The Company's activities are restrictad.yithin

India and hence, no separate ggegrapnral segment disclosure is considered necessary.




DS Toill Road Limifed
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note No 31 Income tax expense

T Millions

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

{a) iIncome tax expense
Current tax

3.49

Current tax on profits for the year

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods -

Total current tax expense . 3.49

Deferred tax

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assels 55.75 64.91

(Decrease)fincrease in deferred tax liabilities (35.73) {48.83)
Total deferred tax expense/{benefit} 20.02 16.28

Income tax expense 20.02 19.77

Income tax expense is attributable to:

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Profitf {Loss) before income tax expense 95.84 4394
Income Tax as per effective Tax Rate of 26% 24.92 11.42
Tax effect of amounts which are not deduclibie (faxable)} in calculating taxable income : -

Adjustment for current tax fo prior periods - -
Expenses Disallowed and Others (4.90) 4.86
Prior Year Tax Adjustment - 3.49
Total Tax Expense 20.02 19.77

{b) Deferred tax balances
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Deferred tax liability on account of:
Intangible Assets 173.43 208.01
Borrowings 0.08 0.22
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Provision for other assets { MMR} 0.12 31.65
Provision for Retirement benefit obligation 0.29 0.31
tUnabsorbed josses (including depreciation) 16.65 41.54
Net deferred {tax liahility)/Asset (155.75) {135.73)
{c) Movement in deferred tax balances:
{ntangible assets
toli cotlection U"i‘sed Tax Others Total
. osses
rights
At April 01, 2020 (257.38) 83.84 54.09 (119.45)
(Charged)/credited:
- fo profit or loss 48.37 {42.31) (22,43} (16.37)
- to other comprehensive income - - 0.09 0.09
At March 31, 2021 (209.01) 41,54 31.74 {135.73)
{Charged)/credited;
- to profit or loss 35.58 {24.89) (31.24) (20.54)
- to other comprehensive income - - 0.52 0.52
At March 31, 2022 (173.43) 16.65 1.03 (155.75)
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Note 32 Contingencies and commitment ; -

Fast Tag Penally : -The company has been collecting penalty from the users for using FasTag lanes withoul vaiid FasTAG, the same has been considered as
part of income of the company since the cempany is of the view thal the same is nol payable to NHAI notwilhslanding the claim from NiHAL The aggregate
amount of penally collected and appropriated under iIncome is Rs. 14.98 Million {Previous Year Rs. 21.41 Million).

independent Engineer/ NHAI have issued various communication to the company purportedly lowards defaull in meeting of the mainienance obligalion and
punch list work of the company and conisequential penaily an account of the same. The company has confested the same and hence no effect of the same is
considered necessary in the financial slatements.

Bank Guarantee of Rs. 500 miliion issued by the lenders to be sumbitted for release of funds from High Court against the arbitralion order issued in favor of the

company.
There are numerous inlerpretative issues refating 1o the Supreme Court {SC) judgement dated February 28th, 2019 on Provident Fund (PF) on the inclusion of

allowances for the purpose of PF conlribution as well as ils applicability of effeclive date. The Company is evaluating for further clarity and ils impact on its
financial statement. The Company, in respect of the above mentionad Confingent Liabililiss has assessed that it is only possible but not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required.

The Company has received communicalion from NIHAI for Cure Perind Notice alleging breaches, which, iner alia, include purporied non fuiliffment of
maintenance obligation by the company as per the requirement of Concession of Agreement. The Company has contested the same and hence do not

anticipate any such action by NHAI since il is in the process of fullifling the required obligation(s), wherever required.

Note 33 : - The Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facililies as per Section 186 {11) read with Schedule VI of the Act.
Accordingly, Seclion 186 of the Act is not applicable o the Company.

Nate 34 Arhifratinn Claims

{a} Arhitration with NHAI
EPC Contractor had raised claims against the Company for an amount of ¥ 1,305.74 millions under the provisions of the EPC Agreement which primarily arose

due to events attibuted to NBAI The claims were scrulinized by the Company and after due deliberations, it was agreed belween the Company and the EPC
Confraclor that the claims shall be referred to NHAT for consideration.

Accordingly the Company along wilh ils claims, submitled the claims of the EPC Contractor to NHAI amounling to ¥ 1.649.95 millions for consideration. The
claims were rejecled by NHAI and accordingly afler foliowing the due procedure of Dispute resolulion, the claims were referred 1o Arbilralion, The Arbitral
Tribunal pronounced an Award in favowr of the Comparny for an amounl of ¥ 1,017.35 millions {includes inferest of ¥ §31.6¢ millions il the date of award).
Further, the Tribunal has also awarded an interest of 12% from the date of Award tilf the dale of realization if the awarded amount is not paid within 50 days
from the date of Award,

The Company's Sec.36 pelition along wilh NHAFs sec. 34 pelition are pending before Hon'ble Dethi High Court. Pursuant to orders of iHorble Dethi High Court,
NHAL deposited Award Amount logelher with inlerest aggregating T 1863.50 Million, in the Regislry of Delhi High Court on 15.02.2022, Hon'ble Delhi High
Courl vide order dale 23.02.2022 allowed the application of the company for withdrawal of the said amount subject 1o furnishing of Bank Guarantee. The
Company and IDFG Bank are in the process of submitling the Bank Guarantee wilh the Registrar of Hon'bie Delhi High Court on 19.04.2023 for withdrawal of

the amount. The EPC Contractor has agreed to awail the conclusion of the process,

Note 35 Events after the reporting year
There are no subsequent events after the reporting year which required adjustments to the financial slatements.

Note 36 CSR Activities
The Company's Corporate Sccial Responsibitity Commitlee (CSR Commitlee) was constituted in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read

with the Companies {Corporale Secial Responsibilily Policy} Rules, 2014 and the policy formulated by the CSR Commiltee indicating activities o be underlaken
by the Company is in line wilh thal of lhe parent Company.

The CSR Commitlee was reconsliluled on May 09, 2022 and now comprises of Shri Sandeep Joshi and Shri Madan Pendse and Shri Shailendra Jain as
Members.

The criteria for spending the CSR amount under Section 135(5) of the Act was net applicable to the Company during the financial year 2022-23.
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Note 37 Other Statutory Information
i} The company has no transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 580 of Companies Acl, 1956

i) The Company have nol advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the intermediary shali:

(a} Direclly or indirectiy lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in an
or

{h) Provide any guarantee, security or the fike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

i) The Company have nol received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shail:

{a) Directly or indirectily lend or invest in ofher persons or enlities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party (Uitimate

Beneficiaries) or
{b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries,
iv) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts thaf has been surrendered or disclosed as income guring

the vear in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act. 1 961,

y manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Uitimate Beneficiaries}

Note 38 Ratio Analysis ¥ Millions
Particulars Mar-23 Mar-22 % variance Reason for variance
3.60 5.18] {30.53) Ratio reduced mainly dus fo

1) Current ratio (afh)
increase In cumrent maturily of

spcwred loan as compare 1o

Cunenl Assets (2) 666.65 05.21 T

Current Liability (b) 185.96 136.06 fasl year and reduction in cash
halances.

2} Debt Equity ratio {ctd) 1.36 243 (43.83) | Debt Equity ratio has improved
dug {0 repayment of the

Debt (c) 984,37 1.576.47 secured loan and profit during

. h .

Equiy {d) 723.26 649.46 the year

3} Debt Service Coverage ratio {eff) .85 .83 1.34

EBITDA (¢} £652.64 589.04

Interesi on Term Loan (i) 178.25 215,16

Principai Repayment (i} §92.65 490.87

Total Interest & Principal Repayment ) = {i+ii) 771.90 706.04

4} Return on Equity ratio (gfh} .11 0.04] 190.48 ROl improved dug to increase

Profit after Tax (g} 75.30 24.08 in profit in current year as

Average Shareholder's Equity (h) 686,36 637.55 compare to last year

5) Trade Payable Turnover ratio {ifi} 0.49 0.61) (34.29) Ratio decrease mainly due 1o

Net Credit Purchases {i) 232.64 133.33 increase in  aveargag {rade

AverageTrade Payable (j) 93.64 81.67 payable as compare {o last year

6} Not Capital Turnover ratio (k/n) 1.87 1.28| 46.75 Ratio reduced mainly due to

Net Safes (k) 952,15 726.69 increase in currerd malurily of]

Current Assets () 666.65 705.21 sscured loan as compare to

Current Liabifities {m) 185.16 136.06 fast year and reduction in cash

Working Capital {n) {-m} 481.49 569.15 balances.

7) Net Profit ratio 0.08 0.03; 151.89 | Ratio improved due tc increase

Profil after Tax {m) 758.30 24,08 in Lol revenue, resuliing in profit

Net Sales {n) a52.15 726.69 during the year as compare 1o
loss in fast year.

8) Return on Capital Employed {o/s} 0.16 012 2963 Ratio improved due 1o increase

EBITA (o) ' 301.73 295.00 in  toll  revenue, resulting

Net Worth (p) 72326 649.46 increase in  operalion profit

Total Debt (g} 984.37 1,676.47 during the year as compare to

Deferred tax liabilities ('r) 155.75 135.73 tast year.

Total Capital Employed (s) {p+q+r} 1,863,37 2,361.66

9) Return on Investment NA, NA

10} inventory Turnover Ratio NA NA

11} Trade Receivable Turnover Ralic NA NA

Note 39 -

Foreigna curroncy Expasure
The Company does nol have any exposing in the foreign currency




DS Toll Road Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 40 Details of Crypto Currency or virtual currency: The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto
currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,
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